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Newarthill Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

The Dhrectors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 October 2018

Principal activitics

Newarthill Lid 15 a holding company whose pimcipal activity 15 the co-ordimation of the Group's activities i construcuon,
PPP vperations and property development, The Group compnses a number of subsidianes including Sir Rohert McAlpine
Limited, a leading bunlding and civil cagineering constructuion company operating primanty within the United Kingdon.

The Growp is celebrating its 150th anniversary dunng 2019 and this longevity reflects an abilily to understand the needs of
chients and wider sociely, innovating and adapting in response o a changing world. it also speaks o (he Tamly cuiture, the
entreprencunal spirit and the enduring values that run through the Group's businesses.

Fair review of the business
The Group's key financial indicators are turnover and profit before tax and these are:

*» Group turnover was £870.5m (2017, £942.5m)

*» The prolit on ordinary activities before laxation and exceptional nems of £21 Om (2017: £16.9m).

« After exceptional stems for losscs on orgamsauonal redesign of the construction business, the impact of closing a defined
benefit pension scheme 1o further acerual and a prepayment penatty incuned when a PPP subsidiary of the Group iepard the
entircty of its senior debt cashier than lorecast, the Group made a profic before tax of £0 7Tm (2017, £20.2m Loss aflier
exceptionad iems for losses on energy from waste projects and the recogmtion of excepiional group pensiont scheme
habilnties).

Constuciion

Following the appowtment of Paul Hamer as Chaef FExccutrve of Sir Robert McAlpine Limited an July 2017 a straegie
review was undertaken 10 best position the Group’s construction business for future growth and opportumties This resulied
in A new Dive year stratepy launched in 2018 which prioriuises:

* Focused, profitable growth

» Trusted chent and partaer relauonships

= A robust and resilient portfolio of work across chosen marhets

* Holding industry leading pasitons in chosen seclors

= A digial transformation by hamessing data and wechnology (o inspire and improve
* Beconing the best place to work.

All of which will support Sir Robert McAlpine Limited’s ambition to deliver on s vision of ‘Proudly Bwilding Bmain's
Future Heritage'.

The UK construction market reenams ghly competitive but despite this backdrop, the Group’s construction business has
performed well and profits have again increased, albeit construction margns currently reman below 1ts medium-term
expectations. Duning 2018 the Group contthued to focus on s cultural change programme aligming all its people behind a
clear strategic vision Considering the needs of clients s at the construciion business's core and makes sure it delivers
optimat valuc through mutual trust and coliaboration. The fundamental commitment to delivering quality, safcly, on time,
and sustainably are begimning to deliver increased prolits.

The Group s prond to have delivered a diverse portfolio of projects for sts ehients and looking forward remans cautious but
optimistie aboul the construcuon business’s prospects 1n 2019 as 1ts order book continucs (o grow year on year

Capital Ventures
There were no movements 1n the Group's ponfolio of PPP mvestments during the year - all of which are being actively
managed and are performing well.

With alt of the concessions now 1 the operational phase, the focus continucs (o be on the delivery of services through the
relevant project compames The service delivery of the lwo road concessions conlinues 1o be provided effectively by the
Group's construction business, whilst all of the facthtics management scrvices on the other concessions are being dehivered
by third party contractors.

The acuvities i this sector continue with fimed new activities while the focus has been on adding value to the existing
portfolio.
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Newarthill Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Taxauon
The group has a small tax credst of £0 9m (2017 - £0.7m)

Cash and Borrowines

The Group had cash balances of £162.2m (2017 £205 9m) al the veur end All the senior foan borrowings of £139.0m {2017
- £177.3m) represented non-recourse debt of which £134 0m (2017 - £172.3m) is in our wholly-owned PPP project
companies. The reduction in borrowings and cash is in part due to a PPP subsidiary of the Group repaying the entire £34.2m
of its senior debt earlier than expected.

Qutlook

The Group continues 10 have substantial cash balances and with anly non-recourse borrowing 1n its PPP project companies,
15 well placed to exploit opportunities within both the construction and development sectors as they arise. The Group has no
debt facilities that are repayable on demand and the Group 15 not subject W any debl covenants or other restrictions. The
Group will continue © prioritse profitability and risk mitigation over lurnover growth

Principal risks and uncertainties

The approach o identtfication and management of principal nsks 15 integral to the delivery of our strategic objectives. The
nsk management approach adopted is not designed to chminate nisk entirely, but provides 2 means to idenufy, pnontise and
manage risks and opportunities in accordance with the Group'’s nisk appetie.

The current principal nisks of the Group are

Management of major contracts and budding nsk: the risks that the construction business is exposed to depend on the size
and complexity of the project wgether with the legal form of contract. The business maintains strong nsk-based procedures
with particular emphasis on the tendenng process and change munagement. There is a formal Risk and Investment
Commttiee which revicws and approves all oppertunitics.

Contract execution nsk:the Group is exposed 1o nsks that could impact on the delivery of contracts to our clients on tme, on
budget and (o the required specification. Rigorous pohcies and processes have been introduced for mobilisation, monutoring
and management of contract performance and maintans a focus on wdenufying and reporting risks at every stage of the
contract Regular contract reviews are undertaken at a number of levels within the business The Group monitos the
performance of joint arrangements, subcontructors and supphers throughoult the contracy

The reteation and development of high-quality stalf the availabihiy of skilled resources to match the needs of the industry 15
viial to the success and cffective operation of our Group, An active People strategy is being deployed addressing, amengst
other things, our employee proposition, engagemnent, succession planning and inclusion

Defined Bepefit Pension Scheme: the Group maintains two defined benefit pension schemes, both of which have a deficit for
which robust recovery plans are in place — see note 23 The Group closed the larger of the two schemes to new entrants and
fyture accrual in the latter part of 2017.

Macroeconomic and geopohitical changes: the ongosng uncertainty in the market as a result of Brexit, 1ts potential impact on
labour availabiity and the risk of mncreased costs due to cumency fluctuations, is a concern for the industry as a whole,
During this period, we have applicd significant effort to build a Brexit mitigation plan to offset any potential detnmental
impact that may occur, The business monitors and reviews this and other macroeconomic and geopolitical risks on a regular
basis

Health and safety incident: the Group is invalved in acuvities that have the potennat to result in personal or environmental
harm, operational loss, regulatory, legal or finangial peralues, and/or reputational loss. The Group has a primary focus on

health and salety and continues 10 invest in the functional leadership, management policies and procedures.

Interest ratz and financial instrument risks: The Group carries no significant debt other than non-recourse borrowing n
project companies. [nterest rate risk in those project companies 15 managed by interest rate swaps or fixed rate borrowing
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Newarthill Limited

Strategic Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Treasury nisk management: Foreign currency exposure in trading activities is mitigated by entening into forward exchange
rate contracts. The Group reviews 115 cash and investments on a regular basis.

Compettuon: the sectors in which the Group operates are tughly comptunive and operate on low marging Failure to compeie
cffectively and cveive to chents’ needs increases the risk of losing market share and the future viability of the business. The
business continually monitors the sectors in which the Group operates, pursing opponunilics in which competitive
advantages exist In addiuen, our key account client focus ensures we adapt. i an agile manner, 10 thewr needs

Robust and secute systems cnvironment where data 1s protected there 1s a risk that the loss of key sysiems or data through a
lack of resifience could have a material impact on the operabons of the Group The Group has robust security protocols
cmbedded 1 its current T environment, which are periodically stress ested intemaliy and by third parties.

Governance nish control and musgation: The challenging of the principal risks and uncertainties forms part of the work of the
audit commutiee The audit commuliee also salisiies itsclf as to the independence of the audior as well as robustly
challenging accounting policies, judgements and estimates, and the Directors’ assessment of whether 1t is appropnate o
adopt the going concern basts of accounting.

Approved by the Board on 14/6/ .'jand signed on s behall by.

Cullum McAlpine
Direcior
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Newarthill Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

The Directors present thesr annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 October
2018,

Directors of the Group
The dircctors who held office during the year and to the date of this report, unless otherwisce stated were as follows

The Hon. David M McAlpine

Cullum McAlpine

Sir Andrew W McAlpine

Gavin M McAlpine BA, MSc (resigned 31 December 2018)

David § Jenkins FCA

Donakd Joyce CA

Miles C Shelley BA, ACA (resigned 31 October 2018)

Robert I W Wotherspoon B.Eng., ACA (appointed 3] Ocicber 2018}

Dividends
No interim dividends were paid during the year (2017: £nil) The Directors do not recommend payment of a finat dividend

Financial instruments

Dbjectives and policies

The Group's activities expose it to 2 number of financial risks incluoding credit nsk, cash flow nsk and liquidity risk, The use
of financial derivatives to manage these risks 15 governed by the Group's policies approved by the board of Directors, The
Group does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes

Price risk, credit risk, iquidity risk and cash flow risk

The Group's principal risks and uncertainnes are included 1n the Strategic Report,

Employment of disahled persons

Tt 15 Group polhicy to give full and fair consideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where they have
the necessary aptitude and abiliies Where employees become disabled, the Group endeavours to continue their employment
provided there are duties they can perform despite their disabilities.

It 15 alse Group policy that there should be equal opportunities in the area of employment without discrimination. Employees
are treated equally and fairly, and selecuon for training, promotion, carcer progression and other benefits 1s taken solely on
ment and ability to perform against role profiles

Employee involvement

The Group provides information to its employees both of a general company nature and to encourage awareness of financial,
economic, strategic and other factors which alfect the Group. We achieve this through formal and informal briefings, our
Group mapazine and our intranel

Future develepments
Details of future developments can be found 1n the Strategic Repon and form parnt of this report by cross-reference.
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Newarthill Limited

Directors' Report for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Going concern
The Group has considerable linancial resources and carries only non-recourse debt. The core construchion operations of the

Group are characiensed by long term centracts and the level of activity n relation 1o these 1s secure 1nlo the foresecable
fulure.

Afler making enquines, the Directors have a reasonable cxpeclation that the Group has adequate resources 1o conlinue 1n
operational existence for the foresceable future, Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basts in prepanag the
Annual Report and linancial statements.

Further detuls regarding the adoption of the going concera basis can be found in the accounting policies note in the financial
statcnients.

Directors’ liabilitics

Third party indemnity provisions madce by the Company were tn force dunng the year for the berefit of the Duectors of the
Company and the Directors of the Company's subsidianes.

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each Director has tuken sieps that they ought to have taken as a Direclor in ordec to make themselves aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish thw the Company's auditor 1s aware of that information. The Directors confirm that there
15 no relevant informatien that they know ol and of which they know the auditor is unaware

Reappointment of auditor
The audior, Delontte LLP, is deemed 10 be reapponted under section 487(2) of the Companies Act 2006

Approved by the Board on jlf/é//7.md signed on 1is behalf by:

Kevin ) Pearsd
Company secretary
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Newarthill Limited

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities

The Direclors are responstble for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with applicable
law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for cach financal year, Under that law the Directors
bave elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Unncd Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting
Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law), including FRS 102 "The Frnancial Reporung Stundard
applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of freland”. Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they arc satisfied thal they give a true and farr view of the statc of affairs of the Company and of
the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing these firancial statements. the Dircetors arc required to:

+  sclect smiable accounting policics and then apply them consistently;
= make judgements and accounting estumates that arc reasonable and prudent;

*  state whether applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

* prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1§ inappropriate te presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and cxplain the Company's
transacuions and dssclose with reasonable accuracy 2l any urne the financial position of the Company and cnable them to
cnsure thal the financial stalements comply with the Companes Act 2006 They are also sesponsible for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities
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Newarthill Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Newarthill Limited
Report oa the audit of the financial stalements

Opinion

In our oprraon the finangia) statements of Newarthidl | imited (the “parcoi company ™) and its subsidianes (the ‘group'y

« give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and ol the parcat company’s alfairs as al 3t October 2018 and of 1the
group’s profit for the year then ended;

= have been properly prepared n accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounung Pracuce, including
Frnancial Reporung Standard 102 “The hinancial Reponting Standard applicable in Lhe UK and Republic of treland™; and

* have been prepared i accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006

We have audued the financial stulements which comprise.

* the consolidated profit and loss account;

= the consolidated siatement of comprehensive mcome;

+ the consohdated and parent company balance shects;

« the consoltdated and parent company statements of changes i equity,
* the consohdated cash flow statcment; and

» the related notes | 1o 32,

The financial reporting framework that has been applied 1 their preparation is applicable luw and Unued Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Minancial Reporting Standurd applhicable in the UK
and Republic of reland™ (Unsed Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Pracuice)

Basis for opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with Internatonal Standards on Audinng (UK) (15As (UK)) and applicable law Qur
responsibilitics under those standards are further described 1o the audior's responsibilities {for the audn of the financial
statements section of our repart

We are independent of the group and the pareat company in accordance with the cthical requirements that are relevant o oor
audil of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the *FRC’s") Ethical Standard, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in gecordance with these requirements We beheve that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropniate 10 provide a basis for our opimon

Conclusions relating to going concern
We arc required by 15As (UK) 1o report in respect of the following matters where:

« the directors’ use of the going concern basis of zccounting i the preparation of the financial statements 1s not
appropriale, or

* the directors have nol disclosed tn the financial statemients any identified matenal uncertamtics that may cast sigmficant
doubt about the group™s or the parcot company’s abnhity to continue Lo adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
penod of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authonsed for issue.

We have nothing to report i respeat of these matters,

Other information

The directors are responsibie for the other iformauon The other information compnises the informaton included in the
annual report. other than the financial statements and our suditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and, except Lo the extent otherwise expheitly stated 1n our repont, we do nol express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is 1o read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other imformation is matenally consistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in
the andit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated 17 we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstalements, wa are required 1o deteramne whether there is 2 matenal misstatement in the financial stalements or a matena)
musstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there 15 a material
msstatement of thus other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Newarthill Limited

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Newarthill Limited

Responsibilities of dircctors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Dircctors' Responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements and for being sausfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal control as the
directors determune 1s necessary (o enable the preparaton of finanaal statements that are free from matenal misstatement,
whether duc to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the dircclors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the parent Company's
ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to gotng concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the parent Company or (0 ccase operations, or
have no reahistic altematve but Lo do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statemeats

Our objectives are to obtam reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to (raud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable ussurance
15 a hagh level of assurance, bul is not a guacaniee thal an audit conducted in accordance with [SAs (UK} will always desect a
material misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can anise from fraud or error and are considered materzal 1f, individually
or in the aggregaie, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of uscrs taken on the basis of
these fipancial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audu of the financial statements 1s located on the Financial Reporting
Council'y, wehsite at www.frc.org uk/suduorsresponsibilitics This description forms pan of our auditor's report

Report en other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companics Act 2006
In cur opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

+ the wnformation given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report for the financiat year for which the financial
stalements are prepared is consisient with the financial stalements; and

+ the Surategic Report and Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of cur knowledge and understanding of the Group and the parent Company and its environment obtained 10 the
caurse of the audit, we have not identtfied material misstatements in the Strategic Repont and the Directors' Repon

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required 1o report in respect of the following matters if, 1o our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent Company, or relarns adeguate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

* the parent Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and relums: or
«  cerlain disclosures of directors’ rernuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

We have nothing to report 1n respect of these maters
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Newarthill Limited

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Newarthill Limited

Use of our report

This report 1» made solely (o the Company’s members, as a bedy, 10 accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undenuhen so that we might state to the Company’s members those matters we are
required to state (o0 them i an auddor’s report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not
uccepl or assumie responsibibity 1o anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body, for our audit
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

(A tfhaty ol

Matthew Hall, FCA (Senior Statntory Auditor)
Far and on behalf of Beloite LLP, Statntory Auditor

London, Umted Kimgdom

Dae: 14Jun82019
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Newarthil! Limited

Consolidated Prefit and Loss Account for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Naote

Turnover 3
Cost of sales

Gross profit(loss)

Administrative expenscs

Other operating (losses)/gains 4
Operating profit/{loss) 5

Gainf(loss) on financral asseis at farr
value through profit and loss account

Interest receivable and

similar incomec 7

Amounts wntten back/{oTf) investments

[nterest payable and similar charges 8

Share of profit of equity accounted

Invesiees
Profit/(loss) before tax

Taxation

Profit/{loss) for the financial year

Before Before
exceptional Exceptional exceptional Exceptional
items items items items
2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017
£000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
867,681 2,822 870.503 880,198 62.301 542,499
{816,044y (2,822 (818,866)  (834,606) (99,4213 (934,027
51,637 - 51,637 45,592 (37.120) 8,472
(29,532) (15,280) (44.812) (30,769) - {30,769}
. A505) - 4505y 5216, W - 5216
21,600 15230y 6320 20,039 £37,120) (17,081)
402 - 402 (1,746) - (1748
2,826 - 2,826 6,016 - 6,016
420 - 420 (1,430) - (1,430
{13,762) {5,050 (18.812} (17,245) - (17,245)
{10,114 (5,050) (15,164} (14.405) - (14,405
9,504 ) - 9,504 11,266 - 11,266
20,990 (20,330) 660 16,900 (371209 (20,220)
917 - 917 667 - 667
21,907 (20,330) 1,577 17,567 (37,1200 (19,553)

The above results were derived from continuing operations

The notes on pages 19 10 58 form an integral part of these financial statcments.
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Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Statutory profit/{loss) for the inanvial year 1,577 (19,533
Usreahised oss on cash {low hedges 2,902 32
Forelgn curency Iraasiation gains/(losses) 1,651 (7,568)
Remeasurement gain/(loss) on delined benefit pension and post-retiremicent
mcdical schemes net of deferred tax (754) 37,361
3,759 29 87s
Total comprehensive income for the year 5,336 10,322
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity sharcholder of the company 5,336 10,322

The notes on pages 1% to 58 Torm an integral pant of these financial statements
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Newarthill Limited

(Registration number: ¢1050970)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 October 2018

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investment properties
Investments

Other financial assels

Current assets

Stocks

Debtors due in less than one year
Debtors due m more than one year
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors Amounts falling duc within one year

Net current assels

Fotal asscts less current liabilities

Creditors: Amounts falling due after mare than one year
Provisions for liabilities

Net assets excluding employee benefits liabilities
Pension and other schemes

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Called up share capital
Capital redemption reserve
Other reserves

Profit and loss account

Total equity

Cullum McAlpine

Direcior

Note

13

15
16
17

18
19
19
20

22

23

24
25
25

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
4,744 5,729
42,638 35,966
22,519 20,366
50,195 44 360
28,501 27,614
148,597 134.035
57,398 59272
185,253 199,627
179,327 182183
162,179 205,893
584,157 646,975
(311.892) (323,780)
272,265 323,195
420,862 457,230
{206,180) {242.,064)
U392y (28,547)
200,760 186,619
(123,486) (114,681)
77,274 71,938
7,104 7,104
15,171 15,171
930 {2,932)
54,009 52,595
77,274 71,938

The notes on pages 19 1o 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.



Newarthill Limited

(Registration number: 01050970)
Company Balance Sheet as at 31 October 2018

2018 2017
Note £ 084 £000

Fixed assets
Investments 16 132,527 132 880
Current asscts
Debtors due in less than one year 19 33,769 129607
Debtors duc in more than one year 19 18,906 17,376
Cash at bank and 1 hand 20 . 2177 10,338

54,852 157,324
Creditors. Amounss falling due within onc year 21 ) {46,351) (132.818)
Net current assels 8,501 o 24,503
Total assets less current liabilities 141,028 157,383
Provisions for liabilitics 22 _{62) 162y
Net assets excluding pension schemes liahility 140,965 157,321
Pension schemes 23 1118,062) (109,098)
Net asseis 22,904 48223
Capital and reserves
Called up share capnal 24 7.104 7,104
Capital redempuion rescive 25 15,171 15,171
Profit and loss account 25 629 25948
Total equity 22,904 48,223

As permittied by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, no profit and less account of the Company is presented. The
Company made a loss alter tax for the financial year of £25,139,000 (2017 - loss of £14,842,000).

Approved und authorised by the Board on Hyy/? and signed on its behatf by:

DAY

Cullum McAipine

Director

The notes on pages 19 to 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Newarthill Limited

Company Statemcent of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Capital redemption

Profit and loss

Share capital reserve account Total
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000
At | November 2017 7,104 15,171 25,048 48,223
Loss for the financial year - (25,139) (25,139)
Onher comprehensive sncome (sec note
25) - (180) (180
Tota! comprehensive income R . (25.319) (25,319
AL 31 Ocober 2018 7.104 15,171 629 22,904
Capital redemption  Profit and loss
Share capital reserve account Total
£ 000 £000 £ 000 £000
AL November 2016 7,104 15,171 2,738 25,013
Loss for the year - (t4,847) (14,842}
Other comprehensive income (see note
25) - - 38,052 38,052
Totat comprehensive income - - 23210 23210
At 31 Ociober 2017 7.104 15,171 25,948 48,223

The notwes on pages 19 10 58 {form an integral part of these financial statements
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Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Cash flows from operating activitics

Profiv(less) for the linanciel year

Adjustments to cash flows [tom non-cash iems
Depreciation and amortisation

Frnancial instrument net gains through profit and loss
Prafii on disposal of property, plant and equipmenat
Loss from sales of investment propertics

Profiv/(lass) from revaluations of investment properucs
Laoss/(profit) from disposals of invesiments

Finance income

Finance costs

Amounts wntten off investments

Share of profit of cquity accounted investees
Taxation

Working captiai adjustments
Decreasc/(increasc) m stocks
Decrease/(increasc) in deblors
{Decrease)increase in creditors

Inerease/(decrease) o retirement and employee benelit obliganons net of
actuarial changes

(Decrease)increase 10 provisions

Increasc/(deerease) in deferred income
Cash from/(used in) operauions

Corporation tax pad

Nei cash from/(used 1n) operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest and dividends received

Acquisition of tangible assets

Proceeds from sale of tangtble assets

Acquisition of investment propertics

Praceeds from sale of investment properties

Procgeds from salc of listed and unhsted secunues

Cash recepts {rom repayment of loans, classificd as investing activities
Advances of loans, classified as investing activiues

Acguisitions of mvestments in joint ventures and associates

Proceeds from sale of investments in joint venuures and associates

Net cash (used iny/from invesung activities

Note

23

16
16
16

2018
£ 600

1,577

9,716
2,902
(369)
884
1,564
(10
(2,826)
18,812
(420)
(9,504)
917)
21,409

1,732
20,273
(23,376)

5,602
£14,565)
. 9,884

20,959

(148)
20,811

2,06!

(10,934)
885
(3,797)
2,466
10

1,484
(1,929)
(579)

1

(10,332)

The notes on pages 19 10 58 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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2017
£ 000

(19.553)

g218
(542)
(4,666}
(8)
(6,016}
18,675
(11,266)
{6671
(15,825

(930
(21,7109
25,039

(5.686)
19,565
(5,867)

(5.414)

{5414)

8917

(5.083)
990
(939)
1,122
789
4,596
(661)

9,738



Newarthill Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 31 Qctober 2018

2018 2017
£ 000 £000
Cash flows from linancing acuvitics
Interest pard (15,038) (12,706)
Repayment of other borrowing (38,300) (6,671)
Payments Lo finance lease creditors (2,521) (1,842)
Net cash used 1 financing activitics (55,885 (21,219)
Net deerease 1n cash and cash equivalents (45,406) (16,895)
Cash and cash equivalenis au the start of the year 205,893 224,108
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 1.692 1,320)
Cash and cash equivalunts at the end of the year 162,179 205,803

The noles on pages 19 o 58 form an imegral part of these financtal statements.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

1  General information

The company 1s a private company himited by share capital, ncorporated in Great Britain and registered in Englond and
Wales.

The address of ns registered ofTice is
Eaton Count

Maylands Avenue

Heme! Hempstiead

Hernfordshire

HP2 TTR

United Kingdom

2 Accounting policies

Summary of significant accounting policics and key accounting estimates
The principal accounling policies applied in the preparation of these financial stalernents are set out below. These pohicics
have been consistently apphied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Statement of compliance
These financial statemnents were prepared i accordance with Financial Reporung Standard 102 "The Financial Reporing
Standargd applicable i the UK and Repubhe of Ireland'.

Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared using the historical cost convention excepl, as disclosed 1o the accounting
policies, certan items are shown at fair value,

Qualifying catity exemptions
FRS 102 allows z qualifying entity centain disciosure exemptions, subject {o certain conditions, which bave been complied
with, including notification of, and no objection (o, the usc of excmptions by the Company's sharcholders.

Statement of cash flows

The Company has taken advaniage of the exemption available from preparing a suatement of cash flows, on the basis that it
15 a qualifying entity and the consolidated statement of cash flows, ncluded 1a thesc financial statements, includes the
Company’s cash flows.

Financial instruments disclosure

The Company has taken advamtage of the exemption avaitable from the financial tnstruments disclosure, required under FRS
102 paragraphs 11 39 to 1 1.48A and paragraphs 12 26 to 12 29, as the information is provided in the consolidated financial
statements disclosures.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Basis of conselidation

The consohdated hnancial statements consoludnte the financial stalements of the Company, 1ts joint vemures and s
subsidiary undertakings drawn up o 31 Uclober 2018

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Compuny. Control 1 achieved where the Company has the power o govern the
financial and operating pelicies of an entily 0 as o obtaim benelits from ts acuvitacs

The results of subsidianes acquired or disposed of duning the year are included m the Profit and Loss Account from the
eitective date of acquisition or up 1o the effective date of disposal, as appropriste. Where necessary, adjustments are made (o
the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policics nto line with those used by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unreahised gains on transactions between the Company and ity subsidiaries, which
are included within amounts owed by and duc 1o related parties, are chminated m ful

Accounting pohicies of subsiciarics have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the palicies adopied by
the Group Non-controlling interests in the net asscis of consohdated subsidiaries are 1denufied separately from the Group's
equity theremn. Non-conrolling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the non controlling sharcholder’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combnation

Investments i joint ventures are accounted {or using the equity method. The consotidated profit and loss account includes
the Group's share of profit/(foss) after 1ax based on the latest financial statemenls und managemen accounts. in the
cansolidated balance sheet, the investments are shown as the Group's share of assets and iabilhiues.

Associates
In the Group financial statements, 1nvestments in associaies arc accounted for using the cquity method.

Investments i associales are recogmsed mitially in the conselidated balance sheet at the transaction price and subsequently
adjusted o reflect the Group s share of total comprehensive income and equity of the associale, less any unpairment. Any
excess of the cost of acquisiiion over the Group's share of the net fair value of the idenufiable asscts, habilinics and
conungent liabitiies of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition, although treated as goodwill, is prescnied as part
of the investment ia the assaciate. Amortisation is charged so as 1o aHocate the cost of goodwill over its estimated uscful life
ustng the strarght-line method.

Losses 1 excess of the carrying amount of an 1investment tn an associate are recorded as a provision only when the Group
has tncurred fegad or consiructive obligations ot has made payments on behall of the associate

Business combinations

Busmess combinations are accounted for using the purchase method The constderation for cach acquisition 15 measured at
the aggregate of the fair values at acgsiuon date of assets given, habihties incurred or assumed, and cquity 1nstruments
issued by the Group in cxchange for control of the acquired entity, plus any costs dircatly attnbutable 10 the business
combinatton. When a business combination agreement provides for an adjustment to the cost of the combination contingent
on future events, the Group incdludes the estimated amount of thst adpustment in the cost of the combination at the acquisition
date if the adjustment 1s probable and can be measured rehably.

Going concern

The Group's business activitics, together with the factors likely 1o affect s future development, petformance and position
arc scl out in the Strategic Report. The financial pasinon of the Group 1s sct out i the Group balance sheet and the
accompanying notes o the financial statements. The Group's cash and borrowings posiions are set out i the Strategic
Report and notes 20 and 26 to the financial statements. A description of the Group’s management of nterest rate rish and
treasucy sk are set ouf (0 the Strategre Report.

The Group has considerable financial resources and carries no signsficant debt other than non-recourse borrowing in project
companies. The core construction operations of the Group are characterised by long-term contracts and the level of acuvily
in refation to these contracls 15 secufe nto the foreseeablc futute. As a consequence, the Birectors believe thai the Group will
bc able to manage 1s business r1sks successfully.

After making enquiries, the Direclors bave a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate

Tesources (o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable fuluse Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Annual Report and financral statements.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation unicertainty

[n the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies the Directors muke certain judgements and estimates that impact
the amounts recognised in the linancial statements Estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical
expenence and other factors, including expectations of future events that are behieved 1o be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The crinical arens of aceounting jedgement are:

The classification for investment properties: Investment properties arc classified as such where the Group identifies land and
buildings which it holds w generate capital appreciation and/or to carn rental income as investment property

Accounting for properties within Stocks: Other propertics are classified as propertics held for development and sale where
the Group identifies [and and buildings which it holds with a view to developing and subsequent sale on the open market,
The Group states 1ts development propertics al cost less impairment.

Significant arcas of cstimation uncenainty arc:

Tumaver: The turnaver policy, descnbed below, requrres torecasts to be made of the outcomes of long-term construction
contracts, which require assessments and estimates o be made on the recovery of pre-contract costs, changes in the scope of
work, contract programrnes, defeets hatlities and changes in costs There are several Jong-lerm construction contracts where
the Group has incorporated significant estimates over contractual entitlements. The range of potential eutcomes could result
n a posiive of negatn e change to underlying prolitabihity and cash fiow,

PPP service concessions Accounting for the service concesston contracts and financial assels requires an cstimation of
service margins, which are based on forecasted revenues and costs of the PPP contracts

Taxation The Group is subject to ax and estimates are regaired in determining the provision fur income taxes The Group
provides for future lmabilities in respect of uncertain tax positions where additional tax may become payable 1n future periods
and such provisions are based on management’s assessment of exposurces. This may involve a significant amount of
cstimates as tax legislation can be complex and open to different interpretation 1 particular i relation to the basis of
taxation on ene-ofl or uruswal transactions. Management uscs both in-house and cxlernal Lax experts and previous
expenience whea assessing tax risks. These judgements are prone o changes in future periods. Each potential liability or
contingency s revistted annually, angd where actual expected tax habitities differ from the provisions, adjustments are made
which can have a material impact on the Group’s profit for the year.

Deferred (ax habshities are gencrally provided for i full and deferred tax assets are recognised (o the extent that 1t 1s probable
that future taxable profit will ansc against which the temporary differences will be utilised. Management estimates arc
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised based on the hkely timing and level of Tuture
taxable profits.

Valuation of investment properties. The Group uses both internal and extemnal professional valuers to determine the relevant
amounts. The primary source of evidence for property valuations should be recent, comparable market transactions on an
arms-length basis However, the valuations of the Group's investment properties arc snherently subjective, as they are made
on the basis of assumptions made by the valuers which may not prove 1o be accurate.

Debtars: A provision for debtors 1s established where it is estimated that the debtors are not considered to be fuily
recoverable When assessing recoverability, the directors consider factors such as the aging of the receivables, past
expetience of secoverability, and the crednt profile of indivsdual or groups of customers These estimates may depend upon
the outcome of future events and may need lo be revised as circumstances change.

Provisions. Provisions (scc note 22) are made for expected future losses on incompiete contracts ‘These provisions require
management's best esimate of the costs that will be required to compiete contracts based on contractual requirements. It 15
umpracncable to estimate the timing of the uttlisation of the future losses and discounting, uniess material, has not been
apphed.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financia! Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Retrement benefit obligations: The Group has defined benefit pension scheme obligations (sce note 23) lo pay pensien
bencfits to the schemes’ members. The cost of these benelits and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of
Tactors, ncluding' hifc expectancy. salary increases, asset valuations and the discount eate on corporate bonds Management
estimates these (actors in detenmining the net peasion obligation in the halance sheet The assumptions reflect histonical
experience and current irends and gake into account the advice of a quahficd aclusary,

Exceptional items

Scction 5 of FRS 102 deals with the presentation of totaf comprehensive incomie for the reporting period. FRS 102 requures
materal items to be disclosed separately on the face of the profit and loss account in a way that enables users 10 assess the
quakity of a company's financial performance. In practice, these are commonly referred (o ay *"excephional” items, but this 1g
not a concepl defined by FRS 102 and therefore there is a level of judgement involved in determining what 1o include as
‘Fxceplional! We consider items which are non-recurning or stgnificant in size or in mature 1o be sunable for separate
presenlalion {sce note 6),

Turnover
Turmover represents the value of work. carnied out, gross property income and services supplied (o chents during the year

Canstruction tumover 1§ recognised by referenee 1o the stage of compleuon at the reporung dae when the outcome of
indwvidual coniracts can be estmated rehably Construction trnover is recogrised on the basis of the proporuon of 1o1al
costs 1t the reporting date to the esiimated total costs of the contracl. Estimates of the final out-tum on each contracl may
include cost contingencics 10 take account of the specific tisks witin cach contract that have been idennficd  The cost
contingencies are revicwed on a regular basis throughout the contract hie and are adjusted where approprate. The Directors
continually review the estimated final out-turn on contracts, and 1n certain limited cases, assess recoverics (rom insurers, and
make adjusiments where nocessary  No margin s recogmsed unil the outcome of the contract can be esumated with
reasonable cenainty. Construchon wmover includes vanations m contract work which are recognised when s probable
that it will be agreed by the chent and the amount can be measured rehably, Construction turnever also ineludes claims
which arc recognised when negoutations have reached an advanced stage such that 111s probuble that the chient will accept the
claim and the amount ¢an be measured rehably, Profit is recogrised on long-term contracts only once the finzl outcome can
he assessed with reasonable conamty by including turnover and cost of sales within the profit and loss account as contract
PrOBTCAseS.

PPP wrnover includes nterest income which 1 ailocaied. from the total projected woitary charge, to the financial asset using
the cffective interest rate method. The residual clement of projected unitary chagge 15 recognised as u margin on opersting
costs by means of a deemed rate of returm on those cosis and is alsoincluded in tumover.

Properly tmover comprises rental income and service charge mcome. Rental ineome tfrom investment property under an
operating lcase 1s recognised within temover on a straight-line basis over the lease term Service charge 1ncome is
recogmscd within turnover in the period to which it relates.

Cost of sales
These compnse the direct costs of the work camced out during the year and include any provisions for expected future losses
and contingencics on contracts

Foreign currcncy transactions and balances

Transactions of United Kingdom based companics denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling st the rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions Monetary assets and habihiies denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet
date are translated at the rates ruling at that date The exchange movements are dealt with 1n the profit and loss account

The financtal statements of (orcign subsidiarics arc translated into sterling at the closmg rates of exchange. The diffetences

arsing ffom lhe translation of the opening net investment 1o subsidiarics at the ¢losing rate and matched long-term foreign
currency bonowings are raken direetly 10 reserves,
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Newarihill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Tax

Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected 1o be paid (or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been cnacted or substanuvely enacted by the balance sheet daie

A provision is recognised for those matiers for which the tax determination is uncertain but it is considercd probable that
there will be a future culfiow of funds to a tax authority The provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amount
expecied to boconte payable. The assessment 1s based on the judgement of tax professionals within the Company supponted
by previous expenence in respect of such activities and in certain cases based on specialist imdependent 1ax adwice.
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all tuming differences that have originated but not reversed at the balance sheet date
where transactions or events that result 1n an obligation to pay more tax in the future or a right 1o pay less tax in the future
have oceurred at the balance sheet date, Timing differcnces are differences between the Group's taxable profits and 11s
results as stated in the financial statements that arise from the isclusion of gams and losses 1n tax asscssments in peniods
different from those in which they are recognised 1n the financial stalements,

Unreligved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only (o the extent that, on the basis ol all avarlable
cvidence, it can be regarded as more tikely than not that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal
of the underlying tming differences can be deducted

Deferred tax habshtes are recognised for uming differences arising from investments in subsidianes and associales, except
where the Group ts able to control the reversal of the Liming difference and it is probabie that it will not reverse in the
foresceable future

Delerred tax 1s measured using the tax rates and laws that have been enacted of substantively cnacted by the balance sheet
date that are expected 10 apply to the reversal of the timing difference Deferred tax relating to non-depreciable property
measyred vsing the revaluation model and investment property is measured using the wax raies and allowances that apply to
sale of the assct. in other cases, the measurement of deferred tax habilitics and assets reflects the tax consequences that
wouk] follow from the manner 1n which the Group expects, at the ond of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and habilities.

Whete items recogmsed in other comprehensive mcome or equity are chargeable to or deductible for tax purposcs, the
resulting current or deferred tax expense or income is presented in the same compoancnt af comprehensive income or cquity
ay the ransaction or other event that resulted i the Lax expense or come.

Current tan asscts and liabilites are offsct only when there is a legally enforecable right to set off the armounts and the Group
mtends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the assel and settle the habrhty simultancously.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offses onty if: a) the Group has a legally enforceable nght o set off current tax assets
against current tax liabiktres, and b) the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to mcome taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable ennities which intend enher to seitle current tax
liabilities anel assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultaneouwsly. in cach future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax habiliues or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Intangible assets

GCoodwill urising on the acquisition of an cotity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's interest in
the nct fair value of the identifiable assets, liabihties and conungent labilitics of the enuity recognised at the date of
acgquisiion, Goodwill 15 initially recognised as an assct at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
amortsation and accurnulated impairment losses.

Goodwill amortisation

Goodwill is amortised over its uselul life. Where the Group 1s unable to make a relable estimate of useful life, goodwill is
amoriised over a penod not exceeding twenty years. Goodwill 15 assessed for impairment when there are indicators of
impairment and any impairment 18 charged (o the profit and loss account. Reversals of impairmem are recogmsed when the
reasons for the imparmment no longer apply.

Tangible assets
Tangible assels are stated at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and accurnulated impairment losses

The cost of tangible assets :ncludes directly attributable costs icurred dunng acquisiion and installation, other than interest,
which is wntien off to the profit and loss account
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Depreciation

Depreciation s charged so as to write off the cost of asscts, other 1han fand and propertics under construcuon, over thewr
estimated vseful Tives, as follows:

Assct class Depreciation method and ratc
straight line on cost between 3.33% and 10%

Frechold tand and buildings
per annur,

straight linc on cost or reducing balance

Fumiture, fitlings and cquipment between 5% and 60% per annum

reducing balance between 3% and 60% per

Property, plant and eqmpment
PETY. piant anc cquip annum.

Investment properties

Invesitment properties are carmied at their farr values based upon the current marhket prnices for comparable real esiate and are
determined annually. Valuations consider available markel prices, adjusted 1of necessary for any difference i the nature,
location or condition of the specifie assel. Changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss.

Investments

Investments in equity shares which are publicly traded or where the lair value can be measured reliably are imtially
mcasured at fatr value, with subseqguent changes 10 fnr vatue recogmised in profit o1 loss Invesunents in equity shares which
are not publicly traded and where Tair value cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less impamwent

[nterest income on debt securities, where applicable, 14 recogmsed in meome ustng the effective interest method  Dividends
on equity secunlics are recogmised in income when recervable

Stocks

Raw matenals and consumables are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price Jess costs o complete and sell
Cost 1s determnned using the first-tn, first-out (FIFG) method Provision 15 made for obsolete. slow-moving or defective
1tems where appropriate

The cost of work 1 progress comprises dircet matenals and, where appheable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
have been incurred in bringing the work to its present locatton and condiion Al each reporting date, stocks are assessed for
imparrment 11 stocks are impaired, the carrying amount is reduced o its sething price less costs 10 complete and sell and the
impairment loss 15 recognised immediately in profit or loss.

l.ang-term contract balances represent costs imcurred net of amounts translerred o cost of sales less any foresceable losses

Properues held for development and sale are stated at the Jower of cost and net realisable value. The costs consist of
construction costs and other costs specifically related to the development other than interest, which s written off in profit or
loss

Trade debtors

Trade deblors are amounts due from customers for services performed in the ordinary course of business.

Trade debtors are recognised initially at the transaction price They are subscguently measured it amortised cost using the
effecuve interest method, less provision for impairment A provision for the impairment of trade debiors is estabhished when
there 15 objective evidence that the Group will not be able to coflect all amounts due according 1o the oniginal erms of the
recevables

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand comprises cash e hand, call deposits and other shori-term highly liquid investments that are
reachly convertible o a known amount of cash and are subject o an nsignificant risk of change in value

Trade creditors

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services thal have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
Accounts payabic are classified as ¢urrent hahilitics 1f the Group does not have an unconditional right, at the end of the
reporung perwod, 10 defer seitlement of the creditor for at least twelve months after the repening date. Jf there 13 an
unconditional nght 1o defer settlement for at teast twelve months after the reporting date, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Trade creduors are recognised imtally at the transacuon price and subsequently measured at amorused cost using the
effective iterest method.

Borrowings

Inierest-bearing borrowings arc tmtially recorded at fair value, nct of transaction costs. Inlerest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently cammed at amortised cost, with the difference between the proceeds, net of dransaction costs, and the amount
due on redemption being recognised as a charge to the prefit and loss account over the period of the relevant borrowing,

Interest expensc 1s recognised on the basis of the effective mterest method and s included in interest payable and similar
charges.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilines unless the Group has an uncondittonal right 10 defer settlement of the babs ity
for a1 least twelve months after the reporting date.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present kegal or constructive obliganon at the reporting date as a result of
past events, 1t is probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to setile the obligation and a rel:able estimate can be
made of the amount ol the cbligation.

Wherc there are a number of sunibar obligations, the hkelihood that an outflow will be required in seitlement 1s determined
by considening the class of obligations as a whole. A proviston is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect
10 any one 1em in the same class of obligations s small.

When the effect of the ume value of moncy is matenal, the amount of a provision is the present value of the amount
expected to be required 1o settle the obligation The discount rate uses a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time valuc of money and risks specific to the hability. The nsks specific 1o the lability are reflected either m the
discount rate or in the estimation of the amounts required 1o settle the obligation, but not both,

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the lerms of the lease transfer substanually all the risks and rewards of
awnership to the lessce

Assets held under finance leases are recogmsed al the tower of therr fair value at inception of the lease and the present value
of the mmimum lcase payments These assets are depreciated on a straight-ling basis over the shorter of the useful life of the
asset and the lease term. The corresponding liability 10 the lessor is included in the balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation

Lease payments are apportioned between finance costs in the profit and loss account and reduction of the lease obligation so
18 10 achicve a constant periodic rate of wterest on the remaining balance of the Jiability,

Share capital
Otdinary shares are classified as equity Equity instruments are measured al the fair value of the cash or other resources
recerved or receivable, net of the direct costs of issung the equity instruments.

Dividends
Dividend disinbutions to the Company’s sharcholders are recogmsed as a hability in the financial statements in the reporting
period in which the dividends are deciared.

Defined contribution pension obligation

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which contnbutions are paid into a pension fund and the Group has no
legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions even if the fund does nat hold sufficient assets 1o pay all
members the benefits relating to employee service 1n the current and prior periods

Contabutions to defined contnibution plans are recognised as employee benelit expenses when they are due. If contnbution
payments exceed the contribution due for service, the excess is recogmised as a prepayment,
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Defined benefit pension ubligation
The Group operates two detined benefit pension schemes wherehy a member will receive a pension benelit en eetirenwent.
usually dependent on one or maose fuctors such as years of service and remuncrztion

The liability recognised 1o the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans s the present vatue of the defined
benelit obhigation at the reporting date less the far value of plan assets. The defined benefii obhgation is measured using the
projected unit method. The present value ol the defined benehit obhgation i determuncd by dhscounung the estirnated future
paymerits by reference o market yields on high-quality corporate bonds al the reporung date that are denominated in the
currency in which the beaelits will be paid, and that have werms o matunty approximating (o the terms of the related pension
ligndity.

Actuarial gains and losses are charged or credited 10 other comprehensive income in the penod in which they anse

Finuncial instruments
Classification
The Group has chosen to adopt Sections 11 and 12 of FRS 102 10 respect of financial instrumcnts.

Recoguition and measurement

Busic financial assats, including trade and other recervables, cash and bank balances and investiments 1o short-term deposits,
are imtally recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement constities a {inancing transacuon, where the tansacuon
is measured at the present value of the fure recopts discounted at a market rate ol interest Such assets are subscquently
carned at amortised costs using the effective interest method.

Other financral assets, including investments in cquity nsteemients which are nol subsidianes, associaws or joinl venlures,
are inttally measured an fair value, which s nonmally the vansacnon pnee

Such assets are subsequently carmied at lar value and the changes in fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that
investiments 0 equiry instruments that are not pubiicly vaded and whose fair values cannot be mcasured refiably are
meastred af cost less impairment

Financiaf assets are de-recognised when (a) the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset cxpire or are settled, or (b)
substantialiy oll the rsks and rewards of the ownership of the assel are transferted to another panty or (¢} despue having
ictained some sigmificant nisks and rewards of ownenhip, control of the asset has been transferred to another party who has
the practical ability 1 umilaterally sell the asset W an unrelated third party without imposing additional restrictions,

Basiwc financial habihaes, icluding trade and other payables. Senior toans and loans [rom fellow group companies, ane
intially recognised at transaction price, unless the arrangement consututes a financing transaction. where the debt instrument
15 measured at the present value of future recetpts diseounted at a market rate of interest.

Debt instruments are subsequently carmicd at ameortised cost, usiag the elfective interest rate method

Fees pad on the eswblishment of Senior loan facitities arc recognised at transaction costs of the loan o the extent chat it 15
probabie that some or all of the facihity will be drawn down. In this casc, the fee is deferred until the draw-down oceurs. To
the extent there s no evidence that it is probable thar some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee 1s capitabised as a
pre-payment for hquidity servaces and amortised over the period ol the facility to which it relates.

Trade payables arc obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired o the orcdhnary course of business from
suppiiers. Accounts payable are classificd as current habilities if payment is due within one year otherwise they are
presented as non-current habilities. Trade payables are recognised imnally at transachion price and subscquently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabihties are de-rccognised when the hability 1s extimguished, that 1s when the contractual obligation 1s discharged,
cancelied or expires
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Impairment
At the end of each reporung perod, financial assets measured at amortised cost are assessed for objective evidence of

impairment. If an assel 18 impared, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated cash (ows discounted at the asset’s original effecuve interest rate. The Impaicment loss 18 recogmised in
profit or loss.

If there is a decrease 1n the impairment loss arising from an event occurring after the tmpairment was recogmised, the
impairment 15 reversed. The reversal 15 such that the current carrying amount does not exceed what the carrying amount
would have been had the tmparrment not previously been recognised. The impairment reversal 1s recognised 1n profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivatives

Denvatives, including interest raie swaps, inflavon swaps and forward foreign cxchange coniracts, are not basic financial
instrumentis,

Denvatives are mmtially recognised at faw value on the date a denvative contract 15 calered into and arc subsequently re-
mecasured at their fair value. Changes 1n the fair value of denvatives are recogmsed in profit or loss within finance costs or
finance income as appropreate, unicss they are included 1 a hedging arrangemeni

Hedging

The Group applics hedge accounling for transactions cntered nto in order to manage the cash flow exposures of borrowings.
Interest rate swaps arc held to manage the interest rate exposures and are designed as cash flow hedges of flowting rale
borrowings

Changes (n {air values of denvatives designated as cash flow hedges, and which are effective, are recognised diectly in
equity Any ineffectivencss in the hedging relaucnship (being the excess of the cumulative change in fair value of the
hedging strument since incegtion of the hedge over the cumulative change m the fair value of the hedged item since
inception of the hedge) 15 recognised o profit or loss.

The gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified (o profit or loss when the hedge relationship ends
Hedge accounting is discountied when the hedging instrument expires, no longer mects the hedging cnteria, the forecast
transaction 15 no longer highly probable, the hedged debt mstrument s de-recognised or the hedging instrument is
terminated.
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3  Turmover

The analysis of the Group's tumover for the year ftom conlinuing operations s as follows

Contracting
PPP concessions
Property

The analysis of the Group's tumaver (or the year by geographie market 1s as follows

United Kingdom
Canbbcan

4 Other operating (losses)/ gains

The analysts of the group's other operating (lossesygains {or the yeat 15 as follows

Gatn on disposal of property, plant and cquipment
Garn on revatuations of investmient propertivs
1 oss on disposal of iInvestment properties

Gan on dispusal of investiments

5 Operating profit/(loss)

Arnived at after charging/(crediting)

Amortisation expense {se¢ note 13)

Depreciation expense (sec note $4)

Impawrment reversal {see note 17)

Operating lcase expensce - propesty

Operating lease expense - plant and machinery
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

2018 2017
£000 £000
814,463 897,704
49,950 39,868
6,090 4927
870,503 942,499
2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
§24.730 895,462
45,373 47,037
870,503 947,499
2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
169 LR
- 4 666
(884) -
10
¢505) 5,216
2018 2017
£000 £ 000
985 984
8,731 7,234
(887 (469
4.153 4,550
6.325 7,523
(369) (542)
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6 Exceptional items

The results for the year mclude the following which arc considered to be Exceptional items based on thewr size or non-
recurring nature,

Included within Adminisirative Expenses are costs tncurred as a result of the following:
= An operationat redesign of the construction business imncurred costs of £3.8m

« On 30th November 2017, the decision was made to close the Sir Roberi McAlpine Tamited Suaff Pension and Lafe
Assurance Scheme o future accrual, incuming one off costs of £9.9m (after 1 0% deduction relating 1o the allocation 1o RES)

* We have worsked with our actuanal advisers o undersiand the implications of the Lloyds GMP judgement for the schemes
in whuch the group purticipates and a cost of £1 6m reflects our best estimate of the effect en our reponted pension habilitics.

I[ncluded wathin Intetest Payable and simular charges arc costs of £5 05m incurred when a PPP subsidary of the Group repaid
the entircty of 11s senior debr.

Following a strategic review in the prior year it was determined that the Group would no longer participate n the
eonstruction of "Energy from Wasie” facthitees, where there was contractual responsibility taken for process nsk. The Group
considered this 10 be a business stream exit Conscquenily, all revenues and directly associnted costs are presented as
exceptional wems to enable the users of the financial statements to get a beiler understanding of the tesults of the Grouwp. The
exited businesses do not meet the definition of discontinued operations as stipulated by FRS 102 because neither the business
nor any asscts related to st have been disposed of. Accordingly, the disclosures within exceptional items differ from those
appiicable for discontinued operations

7 Intercst receivable and similar income

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
[nterest income on mvestments 1,210 [,200
Bank interest receivable and similar income 51 2,783
WNet gain on derivanve . 861
Foreign exchange gains o 763 o 1,166
2,826 6,016

8 Interest payable and similar charges

2618 2017

£ 000 £ 009
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings 14,559 12,368
Interest on obligations under finunce leases and hire purchase contracts 499 338
Foreign exchange losscs 193 57
Net loss on derivauve 380 -
Net interest expense on employec benelit liabiiitics 3,181 3,962
18,812 17,245
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9 Staff costs

The aggregate payroll costs {including Directors’ remuneration) were as follows

2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000
Wages and satancs 138,322 132,057
Soc:al sccurity costs 14,385 14,574
Pension costs, delined contribution scheme 5,698 4,435
Penpvion costs, defined benefit scheme 279 3 684
158,684 154.750

The average number of persons employed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, was as Iollows:

2018 2017
No. No.

Average number employed in consteuction services duning the year 2,182 7,209
The average number of employees ol the Company duning the year way 25 (2017 6)
10 Directors’ remuncration
The Ditectors’ remuneration for the year was by follows

2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000
Remuneration 4,574 2410

Key management personnel compensation in both the current and pnor year consists only of Direclors’ remuneration

During the year the number of Directors who were receiving benefits was as follows:

2618 2017
No. No.

Accrutng benchits under defined benefit pension scheme 2 2
No directors (2017 - nonc} were members of defined contnibution schenes
In respect of the highest paid director:

2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000
Remuneration 800 554

Page 30



Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

11 Auditor's remuneration

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Audu of Parent Company 35 30
Audit of the financial statements of subsihanes ol the Company pursuant to
legislation 329 280

364 310

Other fees o auditor
Fees in tespect of the audit of the associated pension schemes 23 23
12 Taxation
Tax credited 10 the profit and lnss account

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Current taxation
United Kingdom corporation tax 161 145
United Kingdom corporation tax adjustment to pnior periods {163 231

{2) 376

Foreign tax 32 -
Total current tax 30 376
Deferred taxation
Anrsing from ongination and reversal of timing differences {947y . (1,043)
Total 1ax credited (917) (667)

The differences between the total lax credil showa above and the amount calculated by applying the standard (biended) rate
of United Kingdom corpuration 1ax of 19.00% (2017 - 19.41 %) 10 the profid(loss) before tax are as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Profit/(loss) before tax 66() (20,220)
Corporation tax at standard rate 125 (3,925)
Income not taxable in determimng taxable profil (4,423) (4,375)
Expenses not deduciible for 1ax purposcs 2.806 707
Group rehef recerved for nil consideration “n -
Remeasurement of deferred tax asscts and habilites due to changes in Untted
Kingdom 1ax ratc 751 276
Change 1n unrecognised deferred 1ax assets 37 6,894
Unlisation of tax losses nol previously recogmsed {3; {475)
Adjustments to tax charge n respect of previous penods 163y 231
Total rax credu (917) {667)
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Deferred tax

Group
Deferred tax assets ond Hablites (see notes 19 and 22)
Asset Liability
2018 £ 000 £ 000
Depreciation tn exeess of capual ullowances 34 -
Short term tming differences 220 8,107
Losses 12,610 -
Revaluation of investment propeny - 753
Retirement benefit ebligations 21,208 -
34,072 8,860
Asset {.tability
2017 £000 £ 000
Depreciation i excess of capital allowances 33 -
Short lerm nming diflTerences 820 8,920
Losses 12,931 -
Revaluation ol investment propeny - -
Retrement benefit obhgations 19,845 -
33,629 8,920

[t 1y cxpected that £2,818.000 (2017 - £3,501,000) of the defermred fax assets and £650.000 (2017 - £650,000) of the deferred
tax liabilwies wall reverse duning the next year.

There are no unrccogmised deferred tax habihines (2017 - £MiD

There are £33.094,000 (2017 - £33.726,000) ol unrecogmsed deferred tus assets These are analysed as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £ 000
Aceelerated capnal allowances 4,799 3.930
[ osses 27,097 27,682
Shert term tenung differences 1,198 2,114
33,094 33,726

Company
Dreferred tax assets (see note 19}

Deferred tax assels of £20,274,000 have been recogmised 1n respect of retirgmen benefit obligations (2017 - £18,894,000 1n
respoct of retirement benefit obhgations)

There are £1,524,000 (2017 - £1,932 000} of unrccoznised deferred Lax assets These arg analysed as follows:

2018 2017

£000 £000
Accelerated caprtal allowanees 12 12
Short teem turung daiferences 474 768
Lasses 1,038 1,152
1,524 1,932
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The United Kingdom Corporation Tax fell from 20% tw 19% wilh effect from 1 Aprid 2017. The Finance Act 2016 proposed
a further reduction to the cotporation (ax main rate (o 1 7% wich effect from T April 2020. The Fioance Act 2316 was enacted
on 15 Septerber 2016.

13 Intangible assets

Group

Goodwill

£ 000

Cost
At 1 November 2017 _ 19,385
A1 31 October 2018 19,585
Amortisation
Ai 1 November 2017 13,856
Amorusation charge i 985
A1 3] October 2018 N © X1
Carrying amount
At 31 Gctaber 2018 4,744
At 3) Qctober 2017 5,729

Goodwill 15 amortised over the expected useful lives of the assets purchased, which are cstimated to range between 10 and
20 years.

No rescarch and development costs were capitahsed dunng the year (2017 - £Nil) The aggregate amount of research and
development expenditure, 1n the field of civil engineering and construction, recognised as an expense during the year was
£3.5m (2017 - £9.8m)

Company
The company had no intangible asscts at 31 October 2018 (2017 - £ENil).

No rescarch and development costs were capitahsed dunng the year (2017 - ENij) and no research and development costs
were expensed dunng the year (2017 - £MNal).

Page 33



Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

14 Tangible asscts

Group
Frechold iand and  Furniture, fittings  Property, plant and
buildings and equipment equipment Fotal
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

Cost
AL T November 2017 25,720 18,299 46,640 90,659
Additions - 1,119 {1,658 15777
Disposals (135) (383) (3,550) (4,568)
Foreign cxchange movements 97 - 218 3i5
AL31 Oclober 2018 . 25,682 18,535 57,966 102,183
Depreciation
Al 1 November 2017 11,331 14,227 29,135 54,693
Charge for the year 668 1,600 6,463 813
Eliminated on disposal (90) (821 (3,139) (4,052)
Foreign exchange movenments 19 - 154 173
AL 31 Ocober 2018 11,928 15,004 32613 59,545
Carrying amount
At 31 October 2018 13,754 3,531 25,353 42,638
At 31 October 2017 14,389 4,072 17,505 35,966

All land and butldings held by the Group s both the current year and prior year are frechold.

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts
The net earrying amount of tangtble assets includes the following amounts in respecet of assets held under finance keases and
ture purchase conlracls

2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000

Property, plamt and cquiprnent 6.125 7574
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15 Investment properiics

Group
£ 000

At I November 2017 20,360
Additions 3,797
Isposals (3,350)
Transfors from inventones 142
Fair value adjustments .. 1564
AL 31 Oclober 2018 22,519

All investment properties are [reehold. The comparable histoncal cost of the investment propertics 1s £13.456m (2017 -
£14 207m} and the comparable historical depreciation of the invesimeanl propertics 1s £1.494m (2017 - £1.407m).

The wholly-owned investment properues, wiich are situated 1n the Unsted Kingdom and the United States of Amcrica, were
revalued by the Directors based upon internal recommmendations made by qualified Chantered Surveyors and based on markel
values 1n both the current year and prior year.

In respeet of £18 756m (2017 - £13 389m) of freehold investment propertivs there is in existence a fixed and floaung charge
and the remuitance of rental income on these investment properties has been pledged as sccunty.

16 Investments

Group
2017 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Investments injoinl ventures (see note Ga) 50,073 44,140
[nvestments 1t associates {see note 16b) 122 220
50,195 44.360
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16a Investments in joint ventures

The carrying value of the Group's investments 1n joint ventures was as folows;

Equity Loaas Total
Cost and carrying amount £ 000 £ 9600 £4000
Al 1 November 2017 27378 16,762 44,140
Profit for the year 9,580 - 9,589
Duvedends paid (5.049) - (5.049)
Additions 579 - 579
hsposals ) - H
Increase in loans . 1,925 1,929
Repayments - (1.4843) (1,484)
Exchange rate adjustments 390 20 170
AL 31 Octlober 2018 32,886 |7-.I87 - 5;().073

Sce note 32 for a hist of joint ventures of the Group

16b Investments in associates

The carrying value af the Group's invesuneats in associates was ds follows:

LEyuity Louans Total
Cost and carrying amount £000 £ 000 £ 000
At 1 November 2017 330 - 220
Loss for the year (85) - (85)
Dividends (13) - (13}
At 31 Oclober 2018 192 - 122

See note 32 for i ist of associates of the Group
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Company

The carrying value of the Company's investments in subsidhancs was as follows’

£000
Cost
At t November 2017 and 31 October 2018 135,008
Provision
A1 1 November 2017 2,128
Provision 333
A1 31 Qciober 2018 _o_ 2481
Carrying amount
At 31 Oclober 2018 132,527
At 31 October 2017 132,880
Sce note 32 for a hist of subsidiary undenakings ol the Company.
17 Other linancial assets
Group Unlisted sceurities L.oans Total
Cost £000 £000 £000
\ o ), -
At 1 November 2017 & 31 Ociober 2018 12403 16,102 28.505
Provisions
Al 1 November 20617 979 (88) 891
Impairment provisions (released)/made in the year o ©19)  » - (887
AL 31 Octaber 2018 o - s o 4
Carrying amount
9
At 31 October 2018 12,403 16,098 28,501
At 3 Ociober 2017 11,424 16.190 27614

Unhisted securities are held at cost less tmpairment as thewr fair values cannot be measured reliably.

Loans are held at faur value where their fatr value can be measured rehably. Where fair values cannot be measured reliably,

loans are held at cost less impairment.
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18 Stocks

Raw muaicrals and consumables

WIP and long-term contract badances
Piopenties held for development and sale

19 Debtors

Dae in less than one year:

Trade debtors

Financial assets

Amounts owed by related parties
Other debtors

Prepayments

Gross amount duc from cuslomers
for contract work

Defered tax assets (see note 123

Corporation 1ax sy

Duc in more than enc year:
Financial assets

Other debtors

Gross amount duc from customers
for contract work

Delerred 1ax asscts (sce note 12)

Group

2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000
498 525
875 076
56,025 58,071
57,398 59,272

Group Company

2048 2017 2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000 £ 060 £000
16,700 8935 -
5018 2.520 - -
- - 32,047 127441
18,253 30,592 - 242
1,308 13,925 354 400
126.576 138,792 - -
2918 3,501 1,368 1.518
1.480 1,362 - -
185,253 199,627 33,769 129.607

Group Company

2018 2017 2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
121,576 125,176 - .
4427 5,364 -
231170 21,515 -
31,154 30,128 18,906 17,376
179,327 182,183 18,906 17,376

Amounts owed by related partics, which include subsidianes and associzled underntakings are unsceured, inerest free, have
no fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand, except for those nems disclosed 1n note 30
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20 Cash at bank and in hand

Group Company
2318 2017 2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Cash at bank 138,991 122,387 2,177 10,338
Shor-term deposits 23,188 83,506 - -
162,179 205,893 2,177 10,338

Group
Short-term deposits held by the Group have an oniginal matunty of 12 months or less. At the balance sheet date the average
maturity of deposits was 3 months (2017 - 8 months). The average interest rate was 0.95% (2017 - 049%) They arc

measured al amortised cost.

Within the Group figures for shon-term deposits is £17,992,000 (2017 - £73,850,000) and within cash at bank is
£18,783.000 (2017 - £19,308,000) held under teems which are currently restrictive These are held primarily by PPP Special
Purpose Vehicles in both the current and prior years.

Company
The Company had no shoriterm deposus (2017 - £nil) and the Company had no cash at bark held under termis which are
currently restrictive (2017 - £nil).

21 Creditors
Group Company
2018 2017 2018 z017
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Bue within one year
Loans and borrowings (scc note 26) 8,629 10,306 - -
Trade creditors 202.670 223,781 - -
Amounts due {0 related panies - - 46,062 132,664
Social security and other tixes 5,779 5,407 38 12
Other payables 4,926 7,395 - 1
Accrued expenses 33,943 31,507 251 141
Deferred income 55945 45,384 - -
311,892 323,780 46,351 132,818
Duc after ane year
Lpans and borrowings (sec noie 26) 139,914 174,221 - -
Trade creditors 14,752 13,021 - -
Other payables 16,012 18,643 - -
Deferred meome 35,502 36,179 -
206,180 242,064 -

Amounts due 10 related partics, which wnclude subsidiaries and associated undertakings are unsecured, interest (rec, have no
fixed date of repayment and are repayable on demand, except for those nems disclosed in note 29.
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22 Provisions for liabilitics

Group
Deferred tax
£ 000
Al 1 November 2017 8,920
Additional provisions -
Provisions uitlised (60)
AL 31 Ocober 2018 8,860

Other provisions

£000
19.627
5,000
(19,565)
5,062

Total
£ 000

28,547
5.000
(19,615}

13,922

Sce note 12 for a breakdown of the deferred 1ax habihtics.

Other provisions include provisions for insurance and legal claims all of which are incurred 1n the normal course of business
Ity impraciicable to esumate the tnting of the utthsation of luture losses Al amoungs included witlin provisions have not

been discounted.

Compuny

At 1 November 2017

Al 31 Ocrober 2018

Other provisions relate to compensation arrangenients

Other provisions
£ 000

62

62

It ts 1mpracticable to estimate the tnung of the compensation arrangements Al amounts included watton provisions have not

been discounted
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23 P’¢nsion and other schemces

Defined contribution pension schemes

Group

A subsidiary of the Group operates two defined contribution pension schemes where cmployee contributions are matched by
company coniributions. The pension cost charge Jor the year represents contributions payable by the Group to the scheme
and amounted to £3,436,000 (2017 - £4,435.000). All costs were expensed as incurred and there were no amounts
oulstanding, by way of cither amounts owing or commitments, at the year end (2017 - £Nil).

Defined benefit pensien and other schemes

Group and Company

Newarthill Limited operates twoe defined benelit schemes - a stafi scheme {The Sir Roben McAlpine Limited Staff Pension
and Life Assurance Scheme) and a senior executive scheme. The staff scheme has been closed 1o new members since 2002,
On 30 November 2017, this scheme ceased accruing fulure benefits and all active members were transferred to the defined
contnbution scheme and became deferred members incurring one off costs of £2 9m afier the 10% deducuon allocated o
RES.

Group
in addinon, a subsichary of the Group operatles a post-retirement medical scheme for a number of former cmployees.

Post-retirement

Group Staff scheme Exccutive scheme medical scheme Total

2018 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Total hability 123,708 6,726 5,424 135,858
Allocated outside of the Group (12,3723 - - (12,312
111,336 6,726 5,424 123,486

Post-retirement

Staff scheme Executive scheme medical scheme Total

2017 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Total hability 117,122 3,688 5.583 126,393
Allocated outside of the Group LTIy - - (11,712}
105,410 3,688 5,583 114,681

Company Staff scheme Exccutive scheme Total

2018 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Total liability 123,70R 6,726 130,434
Allocated outside of the Group (12372) ) ] - (12,372)
111,336 6,726 118,062

Staff scheme Executive scheme Total

2017 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Total habtlity 17,122 3,688 120,810
Allocated outside of the Group (11,712) - (HLTL2)
105,410 3,688 109,098
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The Sir Robert McAlpine Limited Staff Pension and Life Assurance Scheme

Benefits are based upon pensionable pay Unul 31 December 2012, pensionable pay increased annually altheugh this was
capped dependent on a variely of factors Any difference between actual salary and pensionable pay was paid into a defined
contnbution lund. From 1 January 2013, the pensionable pay was frosen and contritbutions based on this frozen element
with the differcnce continuing Lo be paid into the defined contnbution fund Depending on the level of contnbution being
made by the member, their {inal pension is based cither on this frozco pensionable pay figure or will incrcase over imie -
dependent on a variety of factors, Employee contributions were matched by the cmployer. The assets of the scheme are held
separately {rom those of the Group The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice of an external, qualified
actuary using the projected nnit method  Total contributions (employer and employee) made durning the year were
£8,261.,600 (2017 - £11,710,000) Included wuhin the contributions 1v an additionusl payment of £8.000,000 made by the
employer os agreed in the Recovery Plan following the 2015 valuation (2017 - £8,000,000 adduwional pgyment by the
cmployer),

The date of the most recent comprehensive actuarial valuattion was 31 October 201 5. The pension cost relating o the scheme
15 assessed in accordance with the advice of an external, quahfied actuary using the projecied unit method. The assumplions
which have z significant effect on the resulss of the valuation are those refating to the rate of relurn on the investments and
the rates of increases in salanes and pensions The posi-retirement rate of return uses the gilt yield curve +1 0% and the pre-
retirenient rate of retum uses the gilt yetd curve +2.25% Salary increascs are assumed (o be 2 0% per anrum and pension
increases range between 2 5% and 5 0% depending on when the benefil was accrued. AL the date of the latest actuanial
valuation, the valuation showed a not deficat of £107.6m, with the market value of the scheme’s investments amounling 10
£372 Om which was sufficient 1o cover 785 of the benefits that had accrucd to members. The scheme has been closed to new
entrants and under the projected unit method the curent service cost will inciease as the members approach retirement.
Following cossation, this is no longer the case and accrued service costs are no lenger apphcable

The 1otal cost {before deducuon of costs allocated outside ot the Group) retating 1o the defined benefit scheme for the year
recognised in profit or losy as an expensce. including exceptional items, was £17,588.000 (2017 - £8,243.000)

The total cost relating to the defined benefit schem Tor the year inclsded i the cost of an asset was £N1 (2017 - £Nih)

Reconciliation of scheme assets and hiabilities to assets and labilitics recognised

The amount included in the balance sheet ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of 1ts stafT defined benefit scheme
is as follows

2018 2017

£ 000 £ o
Fair valuc of scheme assets 429,360 444,616
Present value of defined benefit obligation (553,068} (561.738)
Net abality recognised in the balance sheet (123,708) (117,122)

The above figures show the total scheme hability and do not deduct any amounts allocated outside of the Group
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Defined bencfit obligation

Changes in the defined benefit obligation are as lollows:

Present value at | November 2017
Currenl service cost

Past service cost — curtailment costs
GMP Egualisation costs

Interest cost

Actuarial gains and losscs

Benefits pad

Contributions by scheme participants

Present value at 31 October 2018

Fasr value of scheme assets

Changes 1n the fair valuce of scheme assets are as follows:

Fair value at | November 2017

laterest income

Retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included in mterest income/(expense)
Employer contribuuons

Contributions by scheme participants

Assels distnbuted on settiements

Fair value a1 31 October 2018

Analysis of assets

The major catcgorics of scheme asscts are as {ollows.

Cash and cash equivalents
Equity instruments
Debt instruments

Return on scheme asscls

Return on scheme assets

£600
561,738
1.592
£1,009
1,725
15,572
(15,187
(23.665)
284

553,068

£ 000
444,616
12,3i¢
(12,469)
8,284
284
(23,665)

429,360

2018
£000

134,390
181,619
113,354
429,360

2017
£000

112,684
264,411

67,521
444,616

2018
£ 06

(12,469;

2017
£ 000

7,194

The pension schemie has not invested in any of the Group's own financial instruments or in properies or other assets used by

the Group ¢xcept for the two investments described below,
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The entiy's own financial insruments included a the farr value of scheme assets are as follows:

287 of the ordinary shases in Paget Health Services (Holdings) Linuted are held by the pension scheme and the fair value off
ts investment at 31 October 2068 was £13,229,000 (2017 - £12.607,000). 2.125% of the ardinary shares in Autohink
Holdings (M6} I inmied are held by the pension schere and the fair vatue of its investment at 31 Octoher 2018 was £606,000
(2017 - £851,000).

Prncipal acluarial assumptions

The prncipal actuarnal assumptions at the balance sheet date are as follows

2018 2017
% %
Duiscount rate 2.90 280
Retail Price Index (RPI) mflatton 320 310
Consumer Price Index (CPH wfatoen 2.10 200
Rate of wncrease in salarnies 2.50 2.50
Rale of imncrease in pension paynwnts 2.50-3.50 250-340
Post retirement morlality assumplions
2018 2017
Years Ycars
Current UK peasioners at retirement age - male 1310 9320
Current UK pensioners af reirement age - female 21340 23.60
Future UK pensioners at retitement age - male 74 10 24.20
Fure UK pensioners at retirement age - lemale 25 60 25.60

Plans thut share risks between entities under common control

Newanhill Group shares the nisks of the Scheme with Renewable Energy Systems Holdings Limited - an enuty formerly
held within the Newarthill Group but now separale although under common control

The Scheme's deficit (s shared between the Newarthill Group and the Renewable Encrgy Systems Holdings Limited Group
Newarthidl Group recognises 90% of the costs and habilitics of the Schenie and Rencwable Encrgy Systems Holdings
Limied Growp recogmises 10% The figures shown i this note represent the otal scheme habiliny although movements and
balances within the ftnancial statements only recogrise the 909 allocated 1o the Newanbill Group

Contnbutions were based an a percentage of a member's pensionable salary which were mawched by the employer.
Additional contnbutions of £8.0m (2017 - £8.0m) have been made by the employer. Additional employer payments will
continue in 2019 in line with the Recovery Plan and these will be shared 1n the same percentage rato as nosed above.

Executive Pension Scheme

The Group operates a scparate defined benefit scheme for semor executives. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Company. The pension cost relating 1o the scheme 15 assessed in aceordance wath the advice of an external,
qualtficd actsary using the projected unit mcthod Actual contnbutions made were £671,000 (2017 - £672.000)

The date of the most recent comprehensive acwanal valuatuon was 31 December 2015 The assumptions which have a
sigmficant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the rate of return on the investments and the rates of
ncreases in salanes and pensions. The post-retrement rate of returm yses the Bank of England stripped pilts nominal spot
yicld curve +0.5% and the pre-retirement rate of eurn uses the same yiehd curve +1.2%. Salary increases are assumed 10 be
in line with inflation and pension increases range between 2 5% and 5.0%. At the date of the latest actuanal valuation, the
valuation showed a net deficit of £3.7m
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The tolal cost relating 1o defined benefit schemes lor the year recognised in profit or Joss as an expense was £574,000 (2017
- £742,000).

The total cost relating to defined benefit schemes for the year ncluded in the cost of an assel was ENIE(2017  £Nil)

Reconcihiaiion of scheme assels and habiliues o assets and habilites recognised

The amount tneluded in the balance sheet ansing from the Group's obligations in respect of 1ts executive defined benefit
scheme 15 as follows.

2018 2017

£ 060 £009
Farr value of scheme assels 29,203 31,348
Present value of defined henefit obhigation (35,929) (35.036)
Net hability recogmised in the balance shece (6,726) {3,688)
Dcfined beneli obligation
Changes in the defined benefit obligation are as follows,

£ 000
Present valye at | November 2017 35,036
Current service cost 480
[nterest cost 981
Actuarial gains and losses {590)
Benefits pard. net of insurance annuity income L2
Present value at 31 October 2018 35,929
Fair value of scheme assets
Changes 1 the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:
£ 600

Farr value at 1 November 2017 31,348
[nterest 1ncome 887
Actuarial gains and losses (307)
Employer contributions 671
Benefits paid net of insurance annuity income 23
Rerneasurement losses on insurcd asscts (3.218)
Fair value at 31 October 2018 29,203
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Andlysis of assets

The major categories of scheme assets arc as {oflows.

2018 2017
£008 £ 000
Cash and cash cquivalents 29 -
Equily insteuments 11,798 11,875
Insured annuity 14,426 17,179
With profit funds 2,950 2.194
29,203 31348
Rewurn on scheme assets
2018 2017
£000 £ 000
Return on scheme assets (507) 156

The pension scheme has not mvested (n any of the Group’s own financial istruments or in propertics or other assets used by

the Group

Prnncipal acuanal assumptions

The principal acluarial assumpuons are the sanw as the Stall Scheme, except for the following

2018 2017
% %

tFulure salary increases 360 350
Fulure pension increascs (mMdax? 3.20 BN 1Y
Post retirement mortality assumptions

2018 M7

Years Years
Current UK penstoners ot retirement age - male 2210 22.20
Current UK pensioners al retirement age - female 2340 23.60
Future UK pensioners at retiroment age - male 2410 2420
Future UK pensioners at retirement age - lemale 25.60 25.60
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Post-retirement medical scheme

The Group provides unfunded post-retirement medical benefits for a number of s employces afler retirement.

Reconciliation of scheme liabilities to Habihuies recognised

The amounts recogrised in the statement of financial position are as follows

2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000
Present value of scheme liabilitics (5,424) (5,583)
Defined benefit obligation
Changes in the defined benefit obligation arc as follows

£000

Present valuc at | Novernber 2017 (5,583
Tnterest cost (150
Emplayer contributions 375
Change to assumptions 65
Present value at 31 October 2018 (5,424)
Principal actuanial assumptions
The prncipal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date arc as follows:

2018 2017

%e %

Discount rate 260 280
Medical expenses mflation 9 50 9 50

Post retirement mortality assumptions

Mornaluy assumptions are the same as those used lor the staff pension scheme.
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24 Called up share ¢apital
Group and company

AHolled, called up and fully paid shares

2018 2017
No. 600 £ 600 No. 000 £000
Ordinary of £1 each 7,103 7.103 7,103 7,103
A Ordinary of £0 001 cach B 7218 I 7218 |
14,321 7104 14321 7,104

Rights, preferences and restrictions

Ordinary shares have the following rights, preferences and restricuons:

The holders of the ordinary shares are entitled to dividends 1n proporiion Lo the number of shares they hold  Dividends per
share class do nol have to be paid 1n cqual measure.

A Ordinary shares have the following nghts, preferences and restrictions:

The holders of the A ordimary shares are entiied to dividends 1n proportion 1o the number of shares they hold Dividends per
share clasy do not have 10 be paid i cqual measure. The A ordinary shares do not carry any voling rights

25 Reserves

Group

Share capnal

The twa classes of shares and thair nights are desertbed 10 note 24

Capital redemption reserve

The capital redemption reserves represents the price of the Group's ee-purchase of 115 own shares
Other reserves

Other reserves comprise undistnbutable profits and unrcalised gamns and losses on exchange  Also included 10 other reserves
is a hedging reserve which s used 1o record transactions ansing from the Group's cash flow hedging arrangements,

Profit and loss account
The profit and Joss account represents the Group's total retained earnings avalable for distribution.

The changes to cach component of cquity resutting from itermns of other comprehensive income for the current year were as
follows

{’rofit and loss

Other reserves account Total
2018 £000 £000 £000
Unrealrsed gain on cash Mlow hedges 2,902 - 2,902
Foreign curreney translanon losses 861t 750 1,611
Remeasurement losses on pension and
post-retirement medical schemes net off
deferred Lax - (754) (754)

3,763 [€2) 3,759
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The changes to cach component of equity resulung from tems of other comprehenstve ncome for the prior year were as
follows

Profit and loss

Other reserves account Total
207 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Unrealised gain/(loss) on cash Nlow
hedges 217 (135) 82
Forcign currcncy translation gains (7,568) - (7,568)
Remeasurement losses on pension and
post-relirement medical schemes net of
deferred Lax ) o - 37,361 37,361

(7,351) 37,226 29,875

Company
Sharc capual

The two classes of shares and their rights are descnbed 1n note 24

Capual redempuon reserve

The capital redemplion reserves represents the price of the Company's re-purchase of #s own shares.
Profit and loss account

The prefit and loss account represents the Company's 1otal retained carnyngs available for distnbution.

The changes to cach component of equity resufung from items of other comprehensive income for the current year were as
follows:

Profit and loss

account Total
2018 £000 £000
Remeasurement gains on defined benefit pension schemes ned
of deferred tax {180 (180)

The changes 1o cach component of equity resulung from items of other comprehensive income for the prior year were as
follows:

Profit and loss

account Total
2017 £ 000 £ 000
Remeasurcment gains on defined benefit penston schemes net
of delerred tax 38,052 18,052
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26 Loans and berrowings

Group
2018 2017
£ 000 £000
Current loans and borrowings
Finance leases 4,145 2,299
Scmor loans 4 484 8.007
8,629 10,306
Group
208 2017
£ 000 £000
Non-current loans and borrowings
Finance leases 5.360 4,885
Senior loans 134,554 169,336
139,914 174,221
Group
Ineluded n the loans and borrowings are the followrog amounts duc alter more than (ive years,
2018 2017
£ 000 £ 000
Senior loaas afier more than {ive years by istalments 107,640 125,389

Scenior loans after five years
The Group has the following Semior koans:

£Ni (2017 - £9,114,000) waken out by a subsidiary - Autolink Concessionmires (A19) Finuted. The Semor loan accrucs
intcrest on a semi-annual basis at 0 9% above LIBOR plus MEA costs The Searor loan was repard during the year.

£NIF {2017 - £25,133,000) aken out by a subsidiary - Autohink Cencessionaires (A19) Lumited The Senior oan acerues
interest on a semi-annual basis at 6 748%. The Senior loan was repard duning the year.

£32,347.000 (2017 - £36,507,000) taken out by a subsidiary - Pinnacle Schools (Gateshead) Linited. The Senior loan
accrues wnterest on w semi-annual bass at 0.95% above LIBOR plus MLA costs. The margin vagies but wall not exceed
0.95% . The Semor loan is due for repayment 1n 2032 and is secured over the assets of the subsidiary

£30,050,000 (2017 - £31,070,000) taken out by a subsidiary - SRM (Redear & Cleveland} Limuied  The Senjor loan accrues
ierest on a sean-annual basis at 0 6% above LIBOR plus reserve asset costs. The Senor loan 15 duce for repayment in 2037
and 1s seeured over the assets of the subsidiary.

£67,196.000 (2017 - £71,445,000) taken out by a subsidiary - S1r Robent MeAlpine Road Holdings [ innted The Scnior foan
accrues jaterest on a semi-annuad basis at 4% plus annual RPL The Senior loan is due [or repayment in 2027 and s secured
aver the assets of the subsidiary.

£5.000,000 (2017 - £5,000,000) tuken out by a subsidiary - Cardill’ Gate Business Park Linited. £4,000,000 of the Scaor
loan accrues interest on a semi-annual basis at 5.1% and £1,000,000 of the Scnior loan accrues interest on 3 semi annual

basis at 4.0% above LIBOR. The Semaor loan is due for repayment 1n 2020 and 1s secured aver the assets of the subsidiary.

All Sentor louns arc repayable by non-cqual instalments, cxcept {or the £5,000,000 held by Cardilf Gate Business Park
[imtted, which will be repaid in full on the repayment date.
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27 Obligations under leases and hire purchase contracts

Group

Finance leases
Finance leases relaie to the purchase of cranes used in the Group's construction activiues. Cranes are classified as property,
piant and equipment in note 14. There are no contingenl rental, rencwal or purchase option clauscs.

The total future minimum fease payments are as follows:

2018 2017
£ 000 £000
Not later than one year 4,145 2,610
Later than gne year and not latce than tive years X 6,031 3,154
10.176 7.764
Operating leases
The total fugure minimum lease paymients are as follows:
2018 2017
£ 000 £000
Not later than one year 4,100 2,367
iater than ong year and not later than five years 5,940 3,814
Later than five years . 515 3,820
10,613 10,201

The amount of non-canceliable operating lease payments recognised as an expense during the year was £10,478,000 (2017 -
£12,073,000),

Operating leascs - lessor
The total future minimum lease payments are as follows:

2018 2017

£0600 £000
Not later than one year 96 146
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,330 1,330
Later than five years 562 369
1,588 2.045

Totat conungent rents recognised as income in the penod are £1,571,000 (2017 - £1,508,000).
There arc no contingent rental, renewal, purchase opuons, escalation clauses or restrictions imposed.
Company

Operating leases
The wotal futyre minimum lease payments are as follows:

2018 2017

£ 000 £ 000
Not {ater than one year 232 232
Later than one year and not later than five years 367 399
599 831

The amount of non-canceliable operating lease payments recognised as an expense dunng the year was £279,000 (2017 -
£279.000).
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28 Contingent liabilities

Group

There were contingencies in respect of the following

Guarantees of contract perfonmance bonds given in the normak course of business,

Guarantes of performance of subsidiary and joinl arrangements uader funding and leasing agreements; and
Completed and uncompleted contracts.

1t vs impracticable to estimate the financral effect, tming or probabihily of payments in relanon 1o the above tlems

The Group has guaranteed the futnre leaschold rental payments for one of its joint ventures. The contingent labulity expired
in Scptember 208, The maximum habihty at 31 October 2018 was £N1 (2017 - £794,000)

29 HKelated party transactions

Group

There were transachions amounting 1o £13m (2047 - £19.0m) wn respect of construction and other contructs on normal
commercial terms with various oint arrangements, of which £8 2m (2017 - £2 2m) was owing at the year end and included
within deblors due in less than ore year (notc 19)

There were transaclions amounung to £3.1m (2017 - £2.3m) in respect of construction and other contracts on pormal
commeraal wermy with jont ventures and unbsied investments, of which £0 1m (2017 - £0 1m) was owing at the year end
and inctuded within debtors due n fess than one year (note 19)

Included within other Ninancial assets (aote 17) are laan balances of £3 Sm (2017 - £3 6m) and unlisied securitics of £12 4m
(2017 - £12.4m) vwmg from McAulay {Tudor House) Linnted and McAulay (Market Buildings) Limated respectively. The
loan balances have a fur value of £4 0m (2007 - £4.2m) The unhsied securities bave an impairment agatnst them of £1.0m
(2017 - £1.6m} A number of Direclors have anointerest i hoth of these companics

At the year end, BCM McAlpine Limited owed the Greup £57.6m (2017 - £52.8m). During the year no recoveries were
recerved. (2017 - £4 5m). During the year the Group increased part of the provision agamst this balaace by £5 1m (2017 -
reversed the proviston agarnst this balance by £6.2m). BCM McAlpine Limued s a jointly controlled entity

Included within wmover were management fees of £0.1m (2057 - £0.3m) received from vanious jownt ventures, of winch £ml
{2017 - £ml) was outstanding at the year end

Company
The company’s rclated party transachions were with wholly-owned subsidnes and s0 have not been disclosed.
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30 Financial instruments

Group

Cateporisation of financial
instruments
2018

Trade recevables
Other receivables
Short-term deposits
Joint ownership properties
[Loany

PPP financial asscts
Inflation swaps
Interesy rate swaps
Senior loans
Finance lcases
Trade creduors
Accryals

Other crediiors

Categorisation of financial
instruments
2017

Trade receivables
Other receivables
Short-term deposits
Joint ownership properties
Loans

PPP financial assets
Inflation swaps
Interest rate swaps
Sentor loans
Finance lcascs
Trade creditors
Accruals

Other creditors

Newarthill Limited

Financial
assets Derivatives
a1 foir value at fair value Financial
Loans through through Derivatives  liabilities at
and profit profit used for amortised
receivables or loss or loss hedging cost Total
£000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
166,314 - - - 166,314
18,177 - - - - 18,177
23,188 - - - - 23,188
- 1,223 1,223
- 3,648 - - - 3,648
126,594 - - - 126,594
- - 2413 - - 2413
N . {18,187) - {18.187)
- - - €139,038) (139,038)
- (9,505) (4,303)
- - - - (215,698) (215.698)
(125,390) (125.390)
- - - 4275L (2,751
207,679 131,465 2413 (18,18%) {492,382) (169,082)
Financial
assels Derivatives
at fair value at fair value Financial
Loans through through  Derivatives liabilities at
and profit profit used for amortised
receivables or loss or loss hedging cost Totaj
£600 £ 000 £ 600 £000 £ 000 £ 000
169,242 - - - - 169,242
31,512 - - - 31,512
83,506 - - - - 83,506
- 1,651 - - - 1,651
- 4,035 - . - 4,035
- 127,696 - - 127,696
- - 2,793 - - 2,793
- - - (21,089) - (21,089)
- . - (177,344) (177,344)
. . (7,184) (7,184)
- (236,802) (236,802)
(113,069) (113,069
Tttt 4940y 4540y
284,260 133,382 2793 (21,089) (539,348) (140,002)
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Financial assets measured at fair value

PPP financial assers

Assels constructed by the Group's PPP concession compantes are classificd as financial asscls which are held at fair vajue
with changes boing recorded in profil or Joss During the operavonal phase, Tair value iy determined by discounting the
future cash flows allocated o Lthe financial asscl using discount rates based on long-ternt gilt rates adjusted for the nsk levels
associated with the assets. During the year there was an sncrease 10 gilt rates resulting 1 a lar vaduce loss being laken through
profit or losy

The adjustment for risk level premiums vary between 1.5% and 2.9% depeadent on the time (o matunty and the junsdiction
of the asset.

The fair value 15 an assct of £126,594,000 12017 - £127,696,000) and the change in value included i profit or loss is a Joss
of £1,102,000 (2017 - £1,746,000)

Derwvative financial instniunenis - inflation swap

The Group has entered into inflation swaps 1o pay income at RPI and receive income at a fixed rate ol 3 445% for maturities
ranging between 2018 and 2038 The swaps are based en a prnincipal seow-annual amount of £778,000 The fair value has
been deternuncd by discounting the future cash flows of the inflation swaps

The instrument is used to hedge the Group's exposure to RPI on mcome relaung to a subsidiary’s PPP umitary charge income.
Cash flows on the sncome and the inflation swap are patel senu-annually

The fair value 15 an asset of £2,413,000 (2017 - £2,793,000) and the change in valug included 10 profit or Joss 15 o loss of
£380.000 (2017 - pain of £861,000)

Cash flow hedges
Interest rate swap
The Group has entered mio a cash flow hedge to receive mterest a1 floating rates of imerest and pay imterest at fixed rates of

between 4 4149 and 5 03% for matunues ranging beiween 2018 and 2037
The hedging arrangement lixes the tolal interest payable on the Semor loans to between 5.2 66 and 5 63%.

Duning 2018, 4 hedging gamn of £2,902,000 (2017 £217,000) net of deferred tax was recogmised in ather comprehensive
sncome for changes in the fair value of the interest rate swap.

The swaps arc based on a principal amoum of £67,558,000, part of the pnncipal amount of the Group’s Senior loan facilitics,
and mature on the same dates as the Senior loans.,

The fair value hability of the financial instruments designated as hedging instruments st 31 October 2018 15 £18,187,000
(2017 - £21,089,000)

The mstruments are used 10 hedge the Group's ¢xposure 1o interest rate movements on the Seaior loans.
Cash flows on the Senior loans and the interest rate swaps are pard seri-annually.
The amount reclassificd from equity to profit or loss lor the year1s £ENil (2017 - £NiT).

The amount of any cxeess of the fair value of the hedging instrument over the change 1n the fasr value of the expected cash
Nows that was recognised mn profit or loss for the year is £MNil (2017 - £Nil.

31 Parcent and ultimate parent undertaking

The viumate controlling party 1s The McAlpine Pannership Trust, of which certuin trustees are Directors of the Company.
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32 Subsidiaries and refated undertakings

Alt subsidianics, associated undertakings and other sigmficant holdings are shown below. Except where otherwise stated, the
companies are corporated in Great Bntain and regisicred at Eaton Court, Maylands Avenue, Hemel Hempstead,
Hertfordshire, HP2 7TR. The subsidianes marked by * have taken advantage of the exemption [rom an audit in accordance
with Scction 479A of the Companies Acl 2006. The Company has provided a guarantee to each ol these subsidiaries in
compliance with Scction 479C. The enttties marked by » are held directly by the Company, The entties marked by # arc
cither jointly controHed enuties or associates and their results and finanoial position are included 1 these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of accounting.

Registered  Country of

company Incorperation
Company number / registration Interest in shares
Civil engineering and building
Bankside Electncal Contractors Limited 00970503+ 100% ordinary
Briush Contracts Company Limited 00168655 100% ordinary
Derby Joinery Limited 01615045 100% ordinary
McAlpine Linuted Cuyman Istands  100% ordinary
McAlpine Offshore Linuted 100% ordwnary
Pastnership Insurance Company Cayman Islands  100% ordinary
Sir Robert MeAlpine Limsted 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine (Holdings) Linuted # 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Management Contraclors Limited 01157770 = 100% ordinary
St Blaise {1998) Limited 81.68% ordmary
BCM McAlpine Limited # Bermuda 40% ordinary
McAlpine (Caywman) Limited # Cayman Islands  40% ordinary

McAlpine Lumited's registered address is 190 Elgin Avenue, Grand Cayman, KY 1-9005.

Paninceship insurance Company's registered address is 62 Forum Lane, 3rd Floor, Camana Bay, PO Box 30600, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1203

BCM McAlpine Limited's registesed address is 48 81 John's Road, Pembroke, Bermuda, HM 07.

McAlpine (Cayman} Limited's registered address 1s 190 Elgin Avenue, Grand Cayman, KY 1-8005.
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Compuny

Property development and investments
Abacus Developments [ imited

Abacus Projects Bamsted

Abacus Property Holdings Limited

AL Ventures Limated

Axis Land Partnerships Limted
Brichworth Developments Limited ®
Cardili Gote Business Park Linuted
Concert Bay Lowited

Constructl:nergy Liouted

McAlpine Park Lanc Inc

McAlpine Properties Linuted

MC Alpinc Enterprises | imuted

Merlot Developrents Limited

Miltons Shoot 2011 Linnted

Oak Coun Estates (Langstone. Mon ) Linuied
Qak Court Management Company (Coventry) | imited
Oakus Developments Limited

Raglan Development Limited

Roberd McAlpine Enerprises lanuted

Sir Robert McAlpine Enterprses Lamited
Sir Robent McAlpine Healthcare Linited
White Rock Bustness Park Lamited
Tempus Ten (Management) Linuwed#
Cabic Swan Limtted#

Rugistered
COMpany

number

01038942
01460919

02891389
10284645
00777501
02617988
05227029
01498746

(6048528

00869982

04452226
(9854957

10390283

CEPF Il Charles Street Manchester Developments Limited#  1H168796

EHC International Limited #

EHC Marrakech Limited #

EHC Malaysia Lamited #

Endcavour UK 4 Limied #

Jersey Waterfront Group Holdings { Limited #
Jersey Waterlront Groep Holdings 11 Limnted #
Jersey Waterfront Group Holdings HI Limited #
Jersey Waterfront Hotel Holding Limited #

Jerscy Waterfront Hotel Management Pamited #
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Country of
Incorporation

! registration

us.a
Cayman Islands

Jerscy
Jersey
Jersey
Jerscy

Jersey

Interest in shares

100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordtnary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordtnary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
100 ordiary
100% ordinary
1007 ordinury
100% ordinary
100% ordimary
1007 ordinary
100% ordinary
100% ordinary
L00%. ordinary
82% ordinary
54% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary
50% ordinary



Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Registered Country of

company Incorporation
Company namber / registration Interest in shares
Property development and investinents (continued...)
Jerscy Waterlront Hotel {Central Apartments) Lumited # Jersey 50% ordinary
Jersey Waterfront Hotel Development Limited # lersey 50% ordinary
McGreen Estates Limited # 50% ordinary
MSDIL Holdings Limited# 1£357148 50% ordinary
MSDL Properties Limited# 10865339 505 ordinary
Red Kite Securities Limued # 50% ordinary
Scarmac Limited # 50% ordinary
Springfield Village Estate Limited# 15164792 50% ordinary
STEP Springficld Village Limitcd# 11153704 50% ordinary
UK LP Gore Street Limited# 50% ordinary
Consornum 220 LLP # 33.33% ordinary
UBW Limited # Cayman Islands 20% orchnary
Walion Wagner Limited # 20% ardinary

McAlpine Park Lane Inc's registered address is 3200 Barley Lane, Suue 199, Naples, FL 34103,

McAlpme Properties Limited's registered address is 4th floor Queengate Building, 113 South Church Sireet, PO Box 1994,
Grand Cayman.

Mihons Shoot 2011 Limited's registered address 1s Calyx House, South Road, Taunton, Somerset, TA1 3DU

Endeavour UK 4 Limued's registered address is 11 Elmbank Street, Glasgow, United Kingdom, G2 4PB

Jersey Waterfromt Group Holdings I Limited and all Jersey Waterfront group companies registered addresses are The
Radisson Blu, Rue de L'Etau, 8t Heler, Jersey, JE2 3WF.

Scarmac Limited's registered address 1s Furopa Housc, 20 Esplanade, Scarborough, North Yorkshire, YO11 2AQ.

UK LP Gore Street Linnied's regisiered address is Carlyle House, 78 Chorley New Road, Bolton, Lancashire, BiLl 4BY
Consortium 220 L1P's registered address is Duddingston House. Milton Road West, Edinburgh, EH15 1RB.

UBW Limnited's registered address is 2nd floor Harbour Place, PO 472103 South Church Street, Grand Cayman, KY1-1106.
Walton Wagner Limiied’s registered address s Portland House 21 Narborough Road, Cosby, Leicester, LE9 1TA.

Registered Ceountry of

company Incorporation
Company number / registration Interest in shares
PPP investments
Aura Eearning Communities Limited 100% ordinary
Autolink Concessionaires (A19) Limited 100% ordinary
Autohnk Holdings (A19} Limited 100% ordinary
Pinnacle Schools (Gateshead) Holdings Limited 100% ordinary
Pinnacle Schools (Gateshead) Limited 100% ordinary
Pinnacle Schools Limited 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Capital Ventures Limited 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Healtheare (Dawlish)y Limited 03319534 * 100% ordinary
Sir Robert McAlpine Road Holdings Lumited 100% crdinary
Sir Robert McAlpine (A19) Limited 100% ordinary
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Newarthill Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31 October 2018

Country of

Incorporation
Company / registration Interest in shares
PPP investments (continued...)
Sur Roben McAlpine (M6) Limated 1007 subsidary
SRM (Redear & Clevetand) Holdings 100%% subsidiary
SRM (Redear & Cleveland) Limited 100% subsidiary
Paget Healih Services (Holdings) Limited # Bermuda 58% ordinary
Paget Health Services Limued # Bermuda 587% ordinary
Endeavour UK 4 Limited # 50% ordinary
Autohnk Concessionaires (M6) ple # 19.5% ordinary
Autehnk Holdings (M6) Litmited # 19.50 ordinary

Paget Health Service (Holdings) Limited and Paget Health Service Limited's registered address is Victoria Place, 31 Vicioria
Sweet, Hamilton, HIMLO, Bermuda
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